

Special Joint Policy Board and Technical Committee Meeting August 10, 2011 – 12:00 noon

Council Chambers, 102 N. Neil Street, Champaign, Illinois

- I. NTIA Grant Monitoring Site Visit
- II. Adjourn
- III. Next Meeting: August 17, 2011- 12:00 p.m. to 1:30 p.m. Council Chambers, 102 N. Neil Street, Champaign, Illinois

UC2B is an inter-governmental body. The University of Illinois serves as its administrative agent. The University of Illinois strives to ensure that its programs, services, and activities are accessible to individuals with disabilities. If you are an individual with a disability and require assistance to observe or participate, please contact the University of Illinois at 217-244-3835 at least 72 hours prior to the scheduled meeting date.

l	J	C2P	>
	Ľ		

UC2B Policy Board Minutes

Policy Board Meeting August 3, 2011

Location: City of Champaign Council Chambers 102 N. Neil Street Champaign, IL 61820

Board Members Present: Reverend Barnes as proxy for Abdul Alkalimat, Brandon Bowersox, Mike Smeltzer via telephone as proxy for Mike DeLorenzo, Deborah Frank Feinen, Tracy Smith, Fred Halenar as proxy for Richard Schnuer.

Members Absent: Reverend Bogan, Minor Jackson, Pete Resnick

- I. The meeting was called to order at 12:04 p.m. by Chair Feinen.
- II. Roll Call
- III. Approve Agenda: Bowersox moved, Halenar seconded the motion to approve the agenda. The motion was passed by voice vote
- IV. Approve Minutes: Halenar moved, Smith seconded the motion to approve the minutes of 7/20 and 7/27 as written. The motion was passed by voice vote.
- V. Action Items:

a) Marketing Committee Update: Bowersox stated that the committee has been focusing on and attending community events this summer. They will be attending Neighborhood Night at the Anita Purves Nature Center tonight at 6:30 p.m. He also reminded members to mark their calendars for the Tech Demo event on September 15 and 17. Teri Legner passed around a sign-up sheet for upcoming community events and encouraged members to sign up for a shift to promote UC2B.

b) NTIA Grant/Project update – The Statewide meeting on October 5th has been moved to October 12th at NCSA.

c) Summary of Changes in Scope – Report was included in the agenda packet. Bowersox asked who was informing the Urbana Park District and landscape recycling center that their sites have been removed from the primary FTTC project construction when we decided on the revised scope. Bill DeJarnette from Urbana stated he would handle.
d) Status of Consideration of Federal Subawards – The report that was presented to the Champaign City Council was included in PB agenda packet. Legner stated that both cities

had approved the subawards at their last meetings. These agreements provide the funding mechanism for receipt of grant funds to pay for construction and construction-related activities.

e) Resolution to transfer funds – Barnes moved and Halenar seconded a motion to approve the resolution 2011-04 as written. The motion was passed by voice vote.

- VII. Tasks for next meeting: Legner will provide the site visit agenda to the Board along with the NTIA checklist that summarizes the purpose of the monitoring visit and what to expect from the review team.
- IX. Public participation: none
- X. Adjournment: Chair Feinen adjourned the meeting at 12:17 p.m.
- XI. Next meeting: Special Joint Policy Board/Technical Committee meeting with NTIA Representatives August 10, 2011, City of Champaign Council Chambers, 102 N. Neil Street, Champaign, Illinois

Committee Chair Feinen adjourned the meeting at 12:54 p.m.

Next meeting is scheduled for August 3, 2011 from 12:00 noon to 1:30 p.m. in Council Chambers at the City of Champaign, City Building, 102 N. Neil Street.

J:\FIN\Shared\Miscellaneous\UC2B\Meeting Agenda and Minutes\PC Mtg Minutes 11.08.03 draft.docx

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-04

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF FUNDS AMONG PROJECT COST CATEGORIES

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE POLICY BOARD OF THE URBANA CHAMPAIGN BIG BROADBAND CONSORTIUM (UC2B) as follows:

Section 1. That the Project Investigator for the Project Budget for construction of the UC2B infrastructure is hereby authorized to transfer funds in the total amount of One Hundred Thirty-five Thousand Six Hundred Sixteen Dollars (\$135,616) among cost categories as shown in Attachment A.

Section 2. That the transfer is necessary to provide for a contingency of eight (8) percent or One Million Two Hundred Sixty-One Thousand Two Hundred Eighty Dollars (\$1,261,280) for the Fiber-To-The-Curb Phase 1 construction project.

Section 3. That the amount of the transfer is less than ten (10) percent of the total project budget and therefore is not subject to further approval by the National Telecommunications and Information Administration pursuant to the terms of the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program grant award.

Section 4. That this Resolution shall be effective upon passage.

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-04 DATE PASSED: 8-3-11

APPROVED:

ו	JC2B

Urbana-Champaign Big Broadband

Revised Federal Budget as reported on Form 424C

Dig prodabana	(1)	EPE	CITES	Lishana	Champains	Tatala
1. Administrative and legal expenses	424C Total	F&S \$0	CITES \$23,200	Urbana \$0	Champaign \$0	Totals \$23,200
Explanation - this will go for legal expenses	\$23,200		\$23,200	- 40 -		<u>φ23,200</u>
associated with negotiating IRU's.	,,_,					
2. Land, structures, rights-of-way,		\$0	\$23,200	\$0	\$0	\$33.300
annraisals etc	\$23,200	40	\$23,200	ΨV	\$U	\$23,200
Explanation - These expenses were included						
In Construction		<u> </u>	<u>^</u>			
3. Relocation expenses and payments	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Explanation - No anticipated expenses 4. Architectural and engineering fees		\$1,368,467	\$0	\$97,994	\$289,422	\$1,755,883
Explanation - The Shive-Hattery contract has		\$1,300,407	30	\$97,994	\$209,422	<u> </u>
several components. Most of the cost is in this	\$1,755,883					
budget line. The remainder is in the next budget						
line.		A7.10.171				
5. Other architectural and engineering f		\$742,471	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$742,471
Explanation - This is S-H's anticipated	\$742,471					
reimburable expenses.	φι π ,πιι					
			•			
6. Inspection			\$345,696	\$175,562	\$262,734	\$783,992
Explanation - These are the costs for staff time and	\$783,992					
benefits for construction inspection.	*****					
of the cities and the University. 7. Site work		\$8,375		\$8,375	\$16,750	\$33,500
Explanation - FTTP Construction-related site	\$33,500	40,575		40,375	- #10,750	\$33,500
Dreparation.						
8. Demolition and removal	A74 500	\$18,720	\$0	\$18,720	\$37,440	\$74,880
Explanation - FTTP Construction-related work.	\$74,880					
A Construction		¢0.400.000	¢4.040.700	¢E 474 EDE	\$40.070.400	too 207 040
9. Construction	\$22,367,812	\$2,403,028	\$4,210,789	\$5,474,505	\$10,279,490	\$22,367,812
Explanation - This falls into the	<i>\\\\\\\\\\\\\</i>					
categories as detailed below.	A/5 057 000					
Phase 1 Construction:	\$15,657,620	\$1,372,905	\$0	\$4,992,905	\$9,291,810	\$15,657,620
Phase 1 Construction 8% Contingency Node Work	\$1,261,280	\$112,000	\$0	\$401,600	\$747,680	\$1,261,280
Existing Infrastructure	\$561,100 \$485,798	\$561,100 \$0	\$485,798	\$0 \$0	\$0 \$0	\$561,100 \$485,798
Canvass and FTTP Easements:	\$532,500	\$0 \$0	\$452,500	\$0 \$0	\$80,000	\$405,790 \$532,500
Construction Management:	\$240,000	\$0	\$0	\$80,000	\$160,000	\$240,000
Fiber Drops, Inside Wiring & Installation:	\$2,700,000	\$0	\$2,700,000	\$0	\$0	\$2,700,000
implementation Staff time & Benefits	\$929,514	\$357,023	\$572,491	: \$0	\$0	\$929,514
Transfer from Equipment 7/20/11	\$89,020			+	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Transfer from Engineering	\$46,565					
Reduction of F&S Charges	\$92,977				[
Subtotal:	\$22,367,812	\$2,403,028	\$4,210,789	\$5,474,505	\$10,279,490	\$22,367,812
10. Equipment		\$0	\$3,503,872	\$0	\$0	\$3,503,872
Explanation - This falls into three main	\$3,503,872			:		
categories as detailed below.					ļ	
FTTP Electronics: Core Electronics: Servers, Routers, Switches.	\$2,082,029		\$2,082,029			\$2,082,029
Core Electronics: Servers, Routers, Switches, Test Equipment & Network Monitoring Tools	\$1,146,843		\$1,146,843			\$1,146,843
BSS/OSS System	\$275,000		\$275,000			\$275,000
Subtotal:	\$3,503,872	\$0	\$3,503,872	\$0	\$0	\$3,503,872
11. Miscellaneous, Travel & Consultants		\$0	\$73,115	\$0	\$5,000	\$78,115
12. SUBTOTAL (add #1 through #11)	\$29,386,925	\$4,541,061	\$8,179,872	\$5,775,156	\$10,890,836	\$29,386,925
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			on Construction	\$353,556	\$797,156	
13. Contingencies	\$0				\$80,000	\$29,386,925
14. SUBTOTAL (add #12 and #13)	\$29,386,925				\$5,000	
15. Project (program) income	\$0			\$175,562	\$262,734	
16 TOTAL PROJECT COSTS (subtract #15 from				\$07 004	\$280 A22	

16. TOTAL PROJECT COSTS (subtract #15 from

\$5,000 \$175,562 \$262,734 \$97,994 \$289,422 \$80,000 \$160,000 Is: \$353,556 \$797,156

Non-Construction Sub Awards:

Original Construction Total	\$22,232,196
Add \$89,020 from Equipment	\$89,020
Add \$92,977 from F&S Fees (already in that NTIA budget line, but part of Implementation)	internal
Add \$46,596 from Engineering	\$46,596

\$22,367,812

Sign up	sheet

Do	uglass Square Community Block Party and B-Ball Tourney – 8/6/11
10:00 a.m. To 12:00 noon	Teri
12:00 noon To 2:00 p.m.	
2:00 p.m. To 4:00 p.m.	
4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.	
6:30 p.m. To 8:00 p.m.	<u>Neighborhood Nights Concert Series - 8/10/11</u> EBrandon Bowersox will be there]
3:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.	<u>North First Street Farmer's Market – 8/11/11</u>
5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.	

	<u>C-U Days (Douglass Park) – 8/13/11</u>	
	Debfeiner	_
	Brandon Bowersox - what timeslot a	on thelp?
		-
	<u>C-U Days (Douglass Park) – 8/14/11</u>	
		-
		-
	North First Street Farmer's Market – 8/18/11	-
3:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.		-
5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.		-
		-

	<u>NNO Fun Day – Westside Park – 8/20/11</u>
3:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.	Debbun
5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.	
7:00 p.m. to 8:30 p.m.	
	Garden Hills Monthly Meeting – 8/22/11
	FRED HALENAR
	MKE SMELTZER
	<u>North First Street Farmer's Market – 8/25/11</u>
3:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.	
5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.	

.

North First Street Farmer's Market - 9/1/11

.....

3:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.

5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

•



NTIA Field Visit Schedule & Logistics

Session Name	Time	Required Attendees	Session Type	Location
Day One, August 10 th , 2011				
1. Kickoff Meeting	8:30am - 9:00am	BTOP Team, Key Project Staff	Meeting	
2. Meeting with AOR and Project Director	9:00am - 9:30am	BTOP Team, AOR, Project POC	Meeting	Room 2529 DCL 1304 W Springfield Ave,
3. Break	9:30am- 9:45am		Break	Urbana*
4. Programmatic Review	9:45am - 11:45am	BTOP Team, Project Team	Meeting	
Travel to Champaign City Hall	11:45am - 12:00pm			**
5. Lunch	12:00pm – 1:00pm	BTOP Team, UC2B Policy Board, UC2B Technical Committee, Project Team	Brown Bag Lunch Meeting (carry- out from Esquire?)	Champaign City Council Chambers 102 N Neil Street Champaign
Travel to Grants and Contracts	1:00pm - 1:15pm	Tealli		**
 Grants Management and Procurement Review 	1:15pm – 3:15pm	BTOP Team, Project POC/CFO	Document Review / Q&A	Grants and Contracts 1901 S First Street, Champaign
 Observations/Tours (weather/access permitting) 	3:15pm – 5:00pm	BTOP Team, AOR, Project POC	Field Review /Tour	 ** Node 8 - Enterprise Works Node 9 - Siebel Center Drive Around FTTP areas
Day Two, August 11 th , 2011				
1. Project Management Review	9:00am – 11:00am	BTOP Team, AOR, Project POC	Document Review / Q&A	Grants and Contracts 1901 S First Street, Champaign
2. FinancialManagement Review	11:00am – 1:00pm	BTOP Team, Project POC / CFO	Document Review / Q&A	
Travel to Lunch	1:00pm - 1:15pm			
3. Lunch	1:15pm – 2:15pm	BTOP Team, Key Project Staff	Eating	TBD - Black Dog?
Travel to Urbana City Hall	2:15PM - 2:30pm			
4. Wrap-Up Meeting	2:15pm –3:15pm	BTOP Team, Key Project Staff	Meeting	Urbana City Building

* We have two reserved parking places available on the north side of DCL - One for NTIA one for Grants & Contracts

** We have a 6-7 person minivan reserved for the afternoon



Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Effective Grant Monitoring: Site Visits

March 2011

Version 1.0

Prepared for:

National Telecommunications and Information Administration

Broadband Technology Opportunities Program 1401 Constitution Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20230



Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program



Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

Table of Contents

1	Introdu	action	. 1
2	Site Vi	sit Checklist and Areas of Inquiry	. 3
	2.1	General	. 3
	2.2	Program Management	. 3
	2.2.1	All Awards	
	2.2.2	CCI and PCC with Construction Awards	. 5
	2.2.3	PCC/SBA Awards	. 7
	2.3	Project and Resource Management	. 8
	2.3.1	All Awards	. 8
	2.4	Financial Management	10
	2.4.1	All Awards	10
	2.4.2	Grants Management	11
3	Sample	e Site Visit Agenda	17





Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

1 Introduction

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) demands an unprecedented level of accountability and oversight for federal grant programs including the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program (BTOP). As the awarding agency, it is important for the National Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA) to implement effective and rigorous programmatic monitoring and assessment activities that engage recipients, track programmatic and fiscal performance, ensure compliance with statutory and programmatic requirements, mitigate risks and issues pertaining to the recipients, and demonstrate the ability to be accountable in the administration and management of BTOP awards to protect hard-earned taxpayer dollars.

The benefits and intended outcomes of effective grant monitoring include:

- The project complies with the terms and conditions of the award incorporated in the CD-450, including any special award conditions, amendments, and applicable laws and regulations;
- The project is implemented on a timely basis as outlined in the award;
- Recipients remain on track toward achieving project goals, objectives, and planned outcomes;
- Reporting requirements are met on a timely basis and the information reported is accurate; and
- ARRA funds are expended as authorized and in a timely manner.

BTOP management has instituted a comprehensive and strategic approach to monitoring almost \$4 billion in federal grant investments, based on a dynamic and rigorous risk assessment approach. The monitoring strategy, site visit approach and action items stemming from FPO-led site visits will include active engagement and decision making from NTIA/BTOP leadership and coordination with the OIG. The BTOP monitoring function includes activities such as desk reviews, site visits, and program report reviews aimed at safeguarding these large and complex investments. Site visits demonstrate active engagement in the ongoing monitoring of individual BTOP projects. By visiting and inspecting the actual project site(s), BTOP program office staff may evaluate the current status of a project as well as the recipient's ability to meet its goals and to adhere to grant requirements. A benefit of this review is that potential areas of concern can be identified and corrected immediately on -site or through the development of performance improvement or technical assistance plans. To the extent grant recipients fail to comply materially with their obligations under the award, NTIA will take the swiftest action possible to safeguard taxpayer dollars from waste, fraud and abuse.

Program office staff, in coordination with representatives from the Grants Offices, will conduct two types of site visits. NTIA senior leadership may participate in site visits as necessary. The Office of Inspector General has also committed to conducting site visits to observe the performance of BTOP projects. In addition, Grants Office representatives may join the BTOP program office staff on the site visits or recommend specific review items to be included in the visit.

- Site Visits. These visits will typically last two days and will be guided by a standardized agenda and comprehensive framework or "checklist" of review items. These visits will provide FPOs with the opportunity to capture first-hand observations of recipient performance along multiple dimensions, from assessing administrative and organizational capacity to inspecting the physical infrastructure funded with grant dollars. Customized agendas and performance data to be validated, confirmed, discussed, and/or observed will be identified in advance and communicated to the recipient to prepare fully for the visit.
- Advanced Site Visits. These visits will typically last one to three days and will be in direct response to serious issues or concerns noted by the program staff in consecutive program report reviews or in response to performance data that reveal one or more areas of significant program concern. Advanced Site Visits will primarily be used when performance is trending in a negative direction, when an area of significant concern is identified, or when the program office staff has concerns over the validity of recipient reported quarterly or annual performance data. Customized agendas and performance data to be validated, confirmed, discussed, and/or observed will be identified in advance and communicated to the recipient to prepare fully for the visit.





Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

The criteria to determine when projects will receive a site visit include the following considerations:

- Dollar amount of the Federal grant and amount of drawdowns.
- Complexity of the project, as determined by compliance requirements, number of subrecipients or number of locations.
- Whether a recipient has been designated as "high risk" by the Grants Office.
- Relative experience of the recipient in managing a Federal grant.
- Assigned monitoring level.
- FPO and program management concerns over schedule and performance; many include concerns over one or more unresolved issues that necessitate an in-person meeting.

Once BTOP management has established what site visits will be conducted for the upcoming quarter (generally three to four weeks in advance), a pre-review conference call notifies the recipient regarding whom should participate, what topics will be covered, and when the site visit will take place. Sufficient notice will be given to allow recipients time to prepare and to make available for inspection the files or documents requested by the FPO.

- During the site visit, program office staff will meet with key leaders and stakeholders from the recipient organization and key subrecipients assigned to the project, as appropriate. Evidence of project performance and supplemental documentation will be reviewed and discussed during the visit.
- At the conclusion of the site visit, the program office staff will develop a draft Site Visit Report that documents the findings and conclusions from the visit in consultation with BTOP management. Where site visits identify or confirm significant performance problems, the Program Office may specify corrective actions to be taken by the recipient based on observations and conclusions drawn from the site visit. These corrective actions may take the form of a Performance Improvement Plan, Technical Assistance Plan, Corrective Action Plan, or other action, depending on the specific observations. The Program Office may also adjust monitoring levels based on a site visit.

It is important to note that the framework or "checklist" described below constitutes the overall framework for BTOP site visits and is subject to revision. While it is expected that site visits will cover the major areas that generally constitute the greatest risk to program viability—such as project and financial management, organizational structure, grants management and program performance—it is not necessarily the case over a two-day site visit that each of the questions below will be asked and answered. In addition, questions may be modified to address emerging and evolving issues facing particular recipients. It is also critically important that Federal program staff observe and inspect the activities the grant funds are supporting—including broadband construction, workstation installation, or public education activities surrounding broadband adoption campaigns—so that Federal program staff can validate empirically that Federal funds are being used for their intended purposes.





Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

2 Site Visit Checklist and Areas of Inquiry

2.1 General

In preparation for the site visit, the Federal Program Officer (FPO)¹ should review the recipient's submitted reports (Baseline, PPR, APR, FFR, and ARRA), desk review, any pending award action requests, open inquiries, information requests, or other issues that the recipient has not adequately resolved, notes from prior meetings or telephone calls, prior audit findings, the approved application, available maps, SF-1444 submissions, and the recipient's drawdown history, as well as any other issues or areas of concern that the FPO and BTOP management have identified based on the desk review, recipient reports, or other sources. In addition, the FPO should identify any Special Award Conditions that the recipient has not yet satisfied. This preparatory work should serve to focus the discussion along the lines of the key engagement areas outlined in the site visit framework below.

2.2 Program Management

2.2.1 All Awards

Organizational Structure and Capabilities

Discuss the organizational structure and the responsibilities assigned to each functional area. Determine whether the organization's capabilities in each key area appear adequate to execute the award.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Provide an up-to-date organizational chart. Discuss the responsibilities assigned to each functional area.
- Are all grant-funded positions shown on the chart? How has the organizational structure or staffing levels changed since your application was submitted/grant was awarded? Why? Were these changes described in your application and projected in your budget?
- Are each of your key personnel performing the duties originally described in your award documents? Have any of your key personnel changed since the grant was awarded? If so, have you completed individual background screening, if required, and obtained any necessary Grants Office approval for the change?

Staffing

Discuss the personnel assigned to work on the BTOP project. Determine if staffing levels, resources, training, and expertise appear reasonable and adequate based on the size and complexity of the award. Does the FPO perceive any need for additional personnel, subject matter expertise, training, or other staffing resources to complete the grant?

- Discuss your staffing levels, areas of expertise, and training policy.
- Why do you believe that you have sufficient staffing to meet your programmatic requirements and goals?
- In which areas do you believe your organization's staffing and expertise are weakest? What are you doing to improve your capabilities in those areas?

¹ The Federal Program Officer (FPO) works closely with his or her team, including each program director, to customize the most effective site visit solution for each grant recipient. The directors meet weekly with each other and with the BTOP Director to manage the overall site visit strategy, assess monitoring risks, and to make any necessary adjustments in the monitoring strategy, coordinating with the Office of Inspector General, to safeguard taxpayer dollars.





Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

- If you have any open grant-funded positions, what are they? What recruiting efforts are you pursuing? When do you expect to have the positions filled?
- Are there any implications to the BTOP grant success as a result of personnel turnover?
- Does the recipient have any contractors on-site that support the BTOP Grant?
- Do contractors specifically support the report submission process?

Program Results

Marketing and Outreach. Discuss the status of the recipient's marketing and community outreach plans and activities. Discuss the ways the recipient has chosen to inform the intended beneficiaries of its project of its services. The FPO should form an impression of whether these efforts are appropriate for the size and scope of the project and reasonably calculated effectively to reach the target beneficiaries.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Discuss how you are developing your marketing program.
- If you have developed a media and community outreach plan, please provide a copy, as well as examples of advertising and public relations materials you are using to communicate the specific activities and accomplishments of our project.
- How are you (or how do you plan to) inform potential subscribers/beneficiaries of the services you are offering?
- Provide an update on how you are tracking or measuring the impact of your community outreach activities.
- What SLAs have been established to ensure quality of service delivery?
- For CCI recipients, will you be using established distribution channels or will most be direct sales?

Results to Beneficiaries. Discuss the status of the recipient's delivery of services to intended project beneficiaries. Discuss the number of CAIs, subscribers, workstations, students, or other project metrics in relation to baseline projects. Identify any tangible programmatic results. FPOs should review the recipient's PPR submission and use the information provided to engage in this discussion. (CCI: For existing providers, discuss their current customer base in terms of # of wholesale/carrier, CAI/business & residential customers.)

Sample Discussion Questions

- What results have you seen from your community outreach efforts?
- What has been the result of discussions with providers? Describe the process for securing signed agreements.
- What percentage of the proposed beneficiary population (or CAIs) have been captured as subscribers?
- Does your targeted vulnerable population pose any particular challenges to implementing the project?
- Has the program developed procedures/guidelines for identifying and enrolling the target population of the project?
- Describe the steps you have taken to make all sites and project offerings accessible to persons with disabilities.
- How are you monitoring and tracking uptake of your services by CAIs or other project beneficiaries in reaching project goals and objectives?
- What mechanisms are in place or what plans are being made for sustaining the project beyond the life of the grant?
- (CCI Recipients) If you have started offering services, demonstrate that you posted your nondiscrimination and interconnection policies to your primary web site. If you have not yet initiated services, what plans have you made to do so?
- (CCI Recipients) Produce any standard Master Services Agreements or IRU Agreements that you are using in selling services to your customers.
- (CCI recipients) Will the expected number of CAI connections be met by project end? Discuss your projections for CAI, wholesale/carrier connections you anticipate by Sept 30, 2011, Sept 30, 2012.





Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

Project Execution

Implementation. Discuss the recipient's efforts to implement the project. The FPO should consider scheduling time to observe implementation activities, such as the sites of CCI broadband construction or equipment storage, PCC equipment or operation during opening hours, or SBA training classes. The FPO should form an impression of whether these activities are commensurate with those the recipient reported in its annual and quarterly reports, and consistent with baseline goals.

Sample Discussion Questions

- How do you monitor implementation of the project?
- How is progress against plan reported?
- How are your program activities intended to accomplish the goals and objectives of the project and BTOP?
- Is the project actually at the point where progress reports say it is?
- How feasible is achieving the future goals in the plan?
- What is the status of your proposed Recovery Act and Other Governmental Collaborations?
- Demonstrate that equipment you have purchased is as specified in your budget.
- (CCI Recipients) Produce maps illustrating each segment of your planned network, including IRU segments, rights-of-way
 agreements, and construction contracts.
- (CCI Recipients) Produce invoices and document payments under any such contracts.

Compliance

Training and Education. Discuss the ways in which the recipient ensures that the project staff understands the programmatic compliance requirements of the award documents. Discuss any training opportunities that the recipient may have put in place.

Sample Discussion Questions

- What steps have you taken to ensure that project personnel understand the compliance requirements associated with your BTOP grant?
- What training have you provided on the Uniform Administrative Requirements or Cost Principles associated with your grant? What level of previous experience do your personnel have with these requirements?

2.2.2 CCI and PCC with Construction Awards

Construction Management

Construction Status. Discuss any construction-related challenges the recipient may be encountering. If the recipient that has indicated in its annual and quarterly reports that it is on schedule, confirm that this is still the case. For a recipient that has indicated its annual or quarterly reports that it is behind schedule, obtain an update on the recipient's status, discuss the reasons for the delays, and identify the actions the recipient is taking to remedy the situation. In preparation for the discussion, the FPO should review the recipient's baseline report and quarterly and annual PPR submissions, as well as notes of any prior discussions of these issues, and determine whether the recipient is 1Q behind schedule or more based on projected start & production.

- What challenges have you encountered during construction, e.g., weather, other compliance issues, delays in obtaining rights-of-way or pole attachment rights?
- What steps are you taking to address these challenges and what impact do you expect these steps to have?
- (If weather has been a factor) What steps are you taking to compress the building schedule during fair-weather months? What parts of the project can be shifted to compensate for bad weather?





Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

- Provide an update on the status of the challenges (if any) that you identified in your most recent reports.
- What additional challenges do you anticipate?
- What proactive steps are you taking to mitigate these future challenges?

Construction Results. Discuss whether the recipient's proposed network miles will be completed before end of the project period. In preparation for the discussion, the FPO should review metrics to be completed as of Sept 30 2011, Sept 30, 2012 for miles, CAI connections and wholesale agreements. The discussion should focus on existing areas of concern and identify any additional emerging issues.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Other than any construction delays previously discussed, discuss any other issues that may impact your network build schedule, and the ways in which you are addressing those issues.
- What contingency plans are you developing, such as phasing of construction or other steps to accelerate and maximize results to deploy network miles within the agreed-upon timetable?

Environmental Compliance

Status of Environmental Review. If the recipient has received its FONSI, confirm that the recipient is constructing in accordance with the FONSI requirements. Discuss compliance with any mitigation measures that are required. FPO should consider scheduling time to observe construction sites to confirm use of the stated routes and compliance with any required mitigation measures. If the recipient has not received its FONSI, discuss any challenges the recipient may be encountering in completing environmental review. In preparation for the discussion, the FPO should review the recipient's baseline report and quarterly and annual PPR submissions, the status of its compliance with the environmental SAC deadlines, as well as notes of any prior discussions of these issues.

Sample Discussion Questions

- (For recipients that have obtained FONSI) Are you constructing in all respects in accordance with the requirements of your FONSI, e.g., along the same routes surveyed, in accord with any mitigation measures required, etc.?
- (For recipients that have obtained FONSI) If your FONSI required further consultation with historic preservation or other authorities, explain the steps you are taking to comply with those conditions, and confirm whether you have started construction.
- (For recipients that have not obtained FONSI) Explain the status of your EA process, and provide an update on any delays you are experiencing in completing the EA process.
- (For recipients that have not obtained FONSI) If you have obtained limited pre-EA procurement authority, discuss the status of any procurement activities you have undertaken, including arrangements for storage of any equipment that has been delivered.

Financial Management Processes and Systems

Operations Support Systems. Discuss the recipient's processes and procedures for provisioning facilities, invoicing customers, and other back office functions. The FPO should consider reviewing screen shots from the system(s), or observing a demonstration of the system(s) in operation. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with these processes, procedures and systems, and financial managers' commitment to compliance.

Sample Discussion Questions

Discuss your facilities provisioning process. If you are an existing provider, are you using preexisting processes, procedures and systems? If you are a new provider, have you outsourced these functions, or are you deploying new systems? (In the latter case, the FPO should plan to spend some time discussing the process for procuring, implementing, and operating the new system.)





Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

- What is your billing process? Have you established a billing tool? What is it and has it been successfully deployed elsewhere? (The FPO should ask to see screen shots. If appropriate, this can be discussed further and/or demo for the financial management section as this raises questions about handling Program Income.)
- What process has been established for non-payment or slow payment of subscribers?

2.2.3 PCC/SBA Awards

Overview

Discuss general approach in the areas of broadband adoption, increasing employment, and increasing community benefits. *Sample Discussion Questions:*

- What are the steps being taken to increase broadband adoption?
- What are the steps being taken to increase employment, training, and workforce development?
- What are the steps being taken to increase the community benefits of your project?
- What steps are you taking to increase digital literacy?

Sustainable Adoption

Discuss how sustainable adoption is being defined and tracked.

Sample Discussion Questions

- How is sustainable adoption being defined by this project?
- What methodologies and mechanisms are being implemented to measure sustainable adoption?
- What tracking systems are in place to document sustainable adoption?

PCC Usage and Benefits

Discuss specific details around PCCs including progress, tracking, and details around results.

Sample Discussion Questions:

- Is there an outreach plan for your project's PCC(s)?
- What progress has been made against outreach plan objectives?
- How are you tracking the delivery and success of the outreach plan?
- How do you track public use of the computers? How are you documenting users?
- You projected generating ______ total users. How on target do you think you are? What challenges have you faced in meeting this projection?
- You estimated _____ persons in the service area. Has this changed? How are you documenting the changes?
- What progress are you making toward meeting the proposed number of workstations?
- What are your methods for tracking persons served during the business week and over the weekend?

Broadband Use

Discuss the details around the broadband metric including how it is being tracked.

Sample Discussion Questions

How are your tracking broadband usage outside the home, in relation to the projection in your application?

- What are some of the uses of broadband outside the home that are being promoted by this project?
- What types of training and/or education are being provided to your target populations?





Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

How are you tracking participation in internal or external training and/or education initiatives?

Training and Education

Discuss the details around training and education components, including whether they are sufficient, operational, and fully staffed.

Sample Discussion Questions:

- Was the selection of peripherals and equipment sufficient for the tasks or have they been reconfigured?
- Was the amount budgeted sufficient? Have you experienced any acquisition delays?
- Has the workstation software installed been adequate? Have changes to the software been required?
- Are the training and education programs operational and fully staffed?

2.3 Project and Resource Management

2.3.1 All Awards

Schedule

Discuss areas where the recipient may not be on track to meet its baseline project milestones and indicators. To prepare for the discussion, the FPO should review baseline milestones and indicators to determine which issues to focus on baseline to projections for following quarter (i.e., the quarter we are currently in). The FPO should evaluate the recipient's ability to achieve its baseline milestones and indicators, including whether the recipient has the ability to catch up with any that it has missed.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Is the program being administered in a manner consistent with the project Plan? If not, discuss with recipient how the modification process works.
- What is your strategy for completing your project on time, in accordance with the baseline milestones and indicators you provided to BTOP?
- In each area where you are (or anticipate) experiencing delays or shortfalls, what issues are you facing and what is your strategy for overcoming them?
- Describe any reasons why your project may not be complete within the agreed-upon timeframe.

Performance Tracking

Discuss the methods used by the recipient to track project performance. The FPO should evaluate whether these methods are likely to gather accurate and relevant performance data.

Sample Discussion Questions

- How are you measuring project performance metrics?
- How is this data recorded, analyzed and used to improve your delivery of services?
- Who is responsible for documenting progress? Are project plans routinely reviewed and updated?

Project Management

Discuss the recipient's policies and procedures for overall project management, including the roles and responsibilities of each member of the management team. The FPO should evaluate whether the recipient's project management appears adequate to ensure timely and successful project execution.

Sample Discussion Questions

Identify any project management tools and approaches that are being utilized to help manage the grant.



Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

- What is your method for monitoring the implementation of the project and how are you tracking progress?
- Do you have a project evaluation plan and could we review it with you?
 - Will the evaluation be internal, external or a combination of the two? Who will conduct the evaluation?
 - What methods are being used for documentation, data collection and tracking project activities, participants, outreach?
 - Would you like to have technical assistance on data collection methods, tracking systems, evaluation plans, or other evaluation resources?
- How are you ensuring that your project activities are in line with the overall BTOP program objectives?
- Do your progress reports accurately reflect the level of work being completed?

Performance Barriers

Discuss any impediments to performance and the recipient's plans for overcoming them.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Discuss any significant barriers or challenges the project has encountered or that you anticipate, as well as any actions you are taking to overcome these barriers or challenges.
- Identify any external factors that create stress/scrutiny of the recipient.
- Are you aware of any stakeholder complaints or negative press coverage concerning your project?
- Have you experienced ongoing vendor or subrecipient issues? Other procurement problems? What have you done to overcome these issues?
- Do you have systems, processes, or procedures in place to mitigate project risk?
- Are there particular barriers and constraints associated with the proposed technological approach (human, organizational, budget, contractual, and operational)? If so, how are these problems being addressed and what steps are being taken to mitigate further problems?
- Are appropriate skill-sets available to manage the required technology solution?
- Is the proposed broadband access speed being met?
- Do you conduct regular project status meetings with all managers to ensure that all issues are identified and resolved? How often?
- Discuss the result of any improvement action previously completed by the recipient and how it has helped to improve project performance.
- How has corrective or improvement action improved your project's performance?
- In what ways have you improved your operating procedures in order to mitigate risk?
- Identify and discuss any area in which you may benefit from NTIA's technical assistance, such as in financial, technology, compliance, grants management, or other areas.

Performance Strengths

Discuss any particular recipient strengths that should aid performance and the ways the recipient is leveraging them.

- Identify and discuss the strengths of the project.
- What have been the benefits to your organization or community so far in receiving this award?
- Do you have any lessons learned that might benefit other BTOP projects?







Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

- Identify and discuss any BTOP best practices that can be implemented with the recipient.
- In what ways did you mitigate project risk to ensure project success?
- What are some examples you can share in which a potential issue was successfully corrected?

2.4 Financial Management

(In many cases, it will make sense to cover Financial Management and Grants Management together, because many questions will require input from both areas.)

2.4.1 All Awards

Financial Management Processes and Systems. Discuss the recipient's awareness of the financial management requirements of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. The FPO should consider asking the recipient to demonstrate the use of its financial management systems and outline its processes and procedures in this area, as well as the roles and responsibilities of the relevant employees. Discuss the recipient's processes and procedures for handling invoices, managing drawdowns, and issuing disbursements. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Discuss your financial management systems and the ways in which they ensure effective control over and accountability for grant funds.
- How do you perform periodic cost projections to ensure that funds will be adequate to carry out project milestones and objectives?
- Based on the number of financial staff, how do you ensure fiscal duties are segregated?
- How often are balance sheet accounts reconciled to subsidiary ledgers or external statements to substantiate that account balances are correct?
- Discuss the contractual process, the billing process and reconciliation as well as the receipt of funds.
- Discuss your policies and procedures for minimizing the time elapsed between the drawdown of funds and disbursement of those funds. Do you have written processes and procedures to governing this area? If so, provide a copy.
- How do you ensure that all financial information is accurately reported in the PPR, SF-425 and ARRA reporting forms each quarter?
- How do you maintain the details and documentation of all vendor payments and track which materials and equipment have been received?
- For any equipment that you have already procured, please provide invoices and show us where the equipment is being deployed or stored.
- With respect to any contracts that you have executed, but under which you have not made purchases, describe your intended timing for placing orders and show us where the equipment will be deployed or stored.

Match Valuation and Tracking

Match Expenditures. Discuss the methods used by the recipient to track match expenditures and ensure proportional expenditure of matching funds. If the recipient does not anticipate proportionality, determine if it has obtained a SAC so permitting. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance.

Sample Discussion Questions

How do you ensure Federal and match expenditures remain proportional throughout each reporting period?





Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

- How do you ensure match expenditures are properly monitored and documented against your detailed budget?
- Describe how you ensure that non-Federal match through third-party contributions are allowable under the applicable cost principles.
- How do you determine when match has been expended?
- Have all sources of match been approved?

Match Valuation. If the recipient is relying on contributions of its own assets or third-party in-kind contributions to satisfy its matching requirement, discuss the recipient's familiarity with the process for valuing and recording such contributions in the project records. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance. If the recipient has not reviewed the fact sheet on this topic, suggest that it obtain a copy from: www2.ntia.doc.gov/files/BTOP_Fact_Sheet_Matching_Contributions_January_2011.pdf.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Describe your policies, processes, procedures and systems for documenting and valuing recipient contributions and thirdparty in-kind contributions of assets to the project.
- How do you monitor and value contribution of donated expenses (e.g., labor) to the project?

Budget Review

Fiscal Policies and Controls. Discuss the recipient's policies, procedures, and systems for adhering to the project budget, including periodic budgetary review and tracking of expenditures to ensure unrelated expenses are not charged to the grant. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance.

Sample Discussion Questions

- How do you ensure all costs are allowable and allocable to the project?
- What training and experience does your fiscal officer and staff have related to accounting and fiscal matters?
- What experience does the fiscal officer and staff have in managing Federal funds, especially when dealing with vendors and subrecipients?
- What is the process for approving expenditures to prevent instances of false claims?
- Discuss the reasons for any submitted budget revision requests. Confirm that such requests received prior approval.
- Do you understand the rules surrounding the request for a budget revision? How do you determine revisions are needed; how do you prevent the need for multiple revisions?
- If there have been several (more than 3) grant amendment requests submitted by the recipient, discuss reasons for frequency of amendments. Are changes due to subrecipients or contractors? What is the associated risk?

2.4.2 Grants Management

All Awards

Fraud Prevention: Policies and Systems. Discuss the recipient's awareness of fraud risks and any policies or systems it has adopted to mitigate these risks. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance, as well as the level of fraud risk that the recipient may present.

- What policies and procedures have you adopted to detect and deter fraudulent activity? Discuss how you assess the strength and effectiveness of the methods you employ to detect fraud.
- Do you use mandatory vacation periods or job rotation assignments for employees in key finance and accounting control positions?



Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

- Are certain critical aspects of your fraud detection processes not disclosed, in order to maintain the effective ness of these hidden controls? What steps do you take to ensure that fraud detection processes, procedures, and techniques remain confidential so that ordinary employees and potential fraud perpetrators do not become aware of their existence?
- Do you engage in data analysis and continuous auditing efforts based on your assessment of the types of fraud schemes to which organizations like yours (in your industry, or with your lines of business) are susceptible? For example, do you check subcontractors for anticompetitive practices, such as price fixing, conflicts of interest, hidden related -party transactions (bribes, kickbacks), or check invoices for costs unrelated to the project such as unrelated labor charges and disproportionate overhead?
- What type of controls do you have in place to prevent the misuse of inventory, theft of inventory, purchase falsification, etc.?
- Does your information systems/IT process controls include controls specifically designed to detect fraudulent activity, as well as errors, and include reconciliations, independent reviews, physical inspections/counts, analyses, audits, and investigations?

Fraud Prevention: Training and Awareness. Discuss the recipient's actions to ensure adequate training and awareness among its employees for fraud prevention and detection. The FPO should evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of these actions.

Sample Discussion Questions

- How do you communicate fraud detection policies to employees, vendors, and stakeholders?
- What training opportunities do you offer or require regarding fraud detection and prevention?
- Do your internal auditors participate in the fraud risk assessment process and plan fraud detection activities based on the results of this risk assessment?

Fraud Prevention: Procurement. Discuss the recipient efforts to detect and prevent fraud in goods or services it purchases from vendors or subrecipients. The FPO should evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of these actions.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Discuss how the recipient prevents the use of product substitution and substandard materials or workmanship in its project.
- How do you ensure quality materials as ordered are used by your construction team(s)?
- How do you ensure that no unauthorized deviations are made from the construction/engineering plans?

Procurement Policies. Discuss the recipient's awareness of the procurement mandates in the Uniform Administrative Requirements, including the need for written procurement procedures and written standards of conduct governing the performance of its employees engaged in the award and administration of contracts. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Please provide a copy of your written procurement procedures and written standards of conduct governing the performance of its employees engaged in the award and administration of contracts.
- Are all relevant staff members aware of the provisions of these documents? What training have you provided to ensure compliance?

Procurement Processes. Discuss the recipient's procurement processes, procedures, and activities, including how key subrecipients and vendors are selected. The FPO should consider asking the recipient to walk through a typical procurement transaction. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity and compliance with the procurement requirements of its grant award.

12



Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

- How does the organization ensure that procurement transactions conform to applicable requirements governing the selection of subrecipients and vendors, such as the requirement to provide, to the maximum extent practicable, open and free competition, pursuant to 15 CFR § 14.43?
- Is documentation maintained to establish you obtained price quotations or bids as required by your own policies?
- How do you conduct cost or price analyses on bids received?
- How do you ensure that you do not select vendors or subrecipients that have the potential ability to perform successfully, and do not appear on the federal government's Debarment and Suspension list?
- How do you prevent instances of conflict of interest and any illegal hidden transactions such as bribes, gratuities, or kickback schemes?
- How do you ensure that contractors that assisted in developing draft specifications, requirements, statements of work, invitations for bid, or requests for proposals do not compete in the resulting procurement, under 15 CFR § 14.43?

Davis-Bacon. Discuss the recipient's compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act, including the need for any SF-1444 conformances and the inclusion of Davis-Bacon wage rates and contract terms in applicable contracts. Discuss recipient procedures to ensure all contracts exceeding \$2,000 for constructing, renovating, or repairing buildings used by BTOP programs are compliant with the Davis-Bacon Act. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Are you finding relevant wage rates for your state, county, city? (be sure to know if they have submitted 1444 as part of pre-visit prep). If not, are you preparing SF-1444 requests for conformance?
- How do you anticipate that Davis-Bacon compliance will affect your budget and/or project schedule?
- How do you ensure that Davis-Bacon wage rates and related contract terms are included in your contracts, as well as those of your subrecipients and vendors?
- How does the financial system assure that laborers and mechanics are paid prevailing rate wages on BTOP-funded construction, renovation or repair contacts exceeding \$2,000?
- How are timesheets/payroll data reviewed to ensure accuracy and compliance with Davis-Bacon?

Subrecipient Monitoring Policies. Discuss the recipient's subrecipient monitoring plan, including its process for ensuring compliance with the terms and conditions of its grant award that flow down to subrecipients. The FPO should evaluate the adequacy and likely effectiveness of these plans.

Sample Discussion Questions

- What is your plan for monitoring of grant-related activities of your subrecipient(s)? Do you have a written subrecipient monitoring plan? If so, provide a copy.
- What procedures have you adopted for making the program description, guidelines, and Federal regulations available to subrecipients?
- Do you have written agreements with your subrecipient(s) establishing roles, responsibilities, and obligations in connection with the subaward?

Property Management Policies and Systems. Discuss the recipient's awareness of the property management mandates in the Uniform Administrative Requirements. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance, as well as the efficacy of the recipient's property management policies, systems, and procedures.

Sample Discussion Questions

Describe your property management policies, procedures and systems. Provide the documents, systems and reports used in the implementation of the on-going monitoring of facilities, materials and equipment.



Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

- How do you handle it if you detect problems or weaknesses with the program's property management controls?
- Discuss your property management standards for equipment purchased using BTOP funds. Identify if a physical inventory is conducted every two years.
- How does the financial system ensure that records are maintained for all equipment with a unit cost of \$5,000 or greater?
- Has a physical inventory of equipment been conducted within the last two years? Is the inventory document signed by the person or persons who observed the inventory?

Grants File Policies. Discuss the recipient's policies, processes, and procedures for establishing and maintaining its grant files. The FPO should evaluate the level of completeness of these files, and the degree to which they document compliance with the terms and conditions of the grant award and facilitate compliance with audit requirements.

Sample Discussion Questions

- What policies and procedures have you adopted to retain documentation of your grant-related activities? How did you ensure that they contain all required areas of documentation?
- How do you determine what documents are placed in the grants file?
- How do you ensure that your grants files are auditable in an A-133 single audit, a program-specific if required, and by the Office of Inspector General and Government Accountability Office?
- Do specific procedures exist to inform staff how to properly handle Federal funds and document activities?
- Please provide an update on subrecipient and vendor activities. What are your processes, procedures, and systems used to manage subrecipient, third-party contributor, and contractor relations?
- Have you executed appropriate documentation defining the terms of your relationships with each of your subrecipients, third-party contributors, and contractors, e.g., memoranda of understanding or contracts?

ARRA Requirements – Reporting. Discuss any issues surrounding the recipient's completion and filing of Section 1512 ARRA Reports. To prepare for the discussion, the FPO should review the ARRA reports, and discuss with the Grants Office whether the recipient's reports have been correct and timely. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Discuss your policies and procedures for preparing ARRA reports, including any difficulties you have experienced and corrective measures you have implemented. How do you ensure that the reporting of jobs created is consistent with the requirements of OMB guidance?
- Discuss your policies and procedures for ensuring the reporting of subrecipient data in ARRA reports.
- How do you ensure accurate ARRA reporting by your subrecipients?

ARRA Requirements – Buy American. FPO should ensure that the recipient is aware of whether it is subject to Buy American requirements and, if it is, should explore the recipient's policies and procedures for ensuring compliance. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Is your organization subject to Buy American requirements under the Recovery Act?
- If so, discuss your policies and procedures for ensuring compliance.

ARRA Requirements – Transparency. FPO should discuss the transparency requirements of the Recovery Act and explore the recipient's policies and procedures for ensuring compliance. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance.





Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

Sample Discussion Questions

- How are you complying with the requirement of the DOC's ARRA Award Terms to maintain records that identify adequately the source and application of Recovery Act funds?
- For recipients covered by the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133, how will you comply with the requirement to separately identify the expenditures for Federal awards under the Recovery Act on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) and the Data Collection Form (SF-SAC) required by OMB Circular A-133?
- What is your process for ensuring that you can separately identify each sub-recipient, and document at the time of subaward and at the time of disbursement of funds, the Federal award number, CFDA number, and amount of Recovery Act funds?
- How are you ensuring that your subrecipients include on their SEFA information to specifically identify Recovery Act funding similar to the requirements for the Recipient SEFA described above?

Unjust Enrichment/Duplication of Federal Funding. FPO should ensure that the recipient is aware of the prohibition on unjust enrichment and duplication of Federal funding and discuss the recipient's policies and procedures for ensuring compliance. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance.

Sample Discussion Questions

- How do you ensure compliance with the BTOP prohibitions on unjust enrichment and duplication of federal funding in the execution of your award?
- (CCI Recipients) To the extent you are providing broadband to schools and libraries, what processes, procedures, and systems do you have in place to ensure that there is no duplication of funding with Universal Service (e.g., E-rate) funds?
- (PCC/SBA Recipients) To the extent that you are purchasing broadband services as a school or a library, what processes, procedures, and systems do you have in place to ensure that there is no duplication of funding with Universal Service (E-rate) funds?

Records and Reporting – Recordkeeping. Discuss the recipient's processes for maintaining files related to its grant-related activities. The FPO should inspect the files to ensure that they are orderly, appear comprehensive, and are being maintained according to an established system. DOC requires record retention for three years from the date of submission of the accepted final financial report, so the FPO should inquire as to how the recipient intends to abide by this requirement. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance.

Sample Discussion Questions

- Discuss your property management systems and the ways in which they ensure effective control over and accountability for property and other grant-funded assets.
- Discuss how weekly certified payroll records and timesheets are properly prepared and maintained to comply with the Davis-Bacon Act. Provide examples of these records.
- How do you ensure the number of hours worked on grant-related activities is accurately reported in the timesheets?
- How are payroll runs properly charged to the appropriate project account? (This is especially important for recipients with multiple BTOP projects or with major projects they are funding themselves.)
- (CCI and PCC with Construction) How are you planning to comply with the requirements to document and record the Federal Interest in property acquired or improved with federal funds? Has any documentation been recorded in state records as yet?

Records and Reporting – Reporting. Discuss the recipient's processes for preparing and filing BTOP reports, including the annual and quarterly PPR and FFR filings. The FPO should evaluate the recipient's level of familiarity with the requirements in this area and its commitment to compliance, as well as the the efficacy of the recipients' processes and procedures.





Made Possible by the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program

Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

- Who is responsible for completing and submitting reports? How many other people in the organization need to provide information to complete the reports? Are those people responsive? Do you have executive level support for the importance of preparing timely and complete reports?
- Do your staff members responsible for reporting understand the respective reporting system protocols for report submission?
- Do you have a history of late reporting? If so, discuss issues and challenges you are facing, and whether NTIA may be able to provide technical assistance.
- Discuss any issues that you have had with submitting timely PPRs with sufficient detail, including the underlying causes and corrective steps that you are taking.
- Discuss any other issues that you have had in preparing and submitting timely FFRs.
- Do you have any concerns pertaining to the use of the GOL and PAM systems to file reports?





Funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

3 Sample Site Visit Agenda

	Session Name	Required Attendees	Session Type
Day On	e		
1.	Kickoff Meeting	BTOP Team, Key Project Staff	Meeting
2.	Meeting with AOR and Project Director	BTOP Team, AOR, Project POC	Meeting
3.	Program Scope Review	BTOP Team, Project Team	Meeting
4.	Project Management Review	BTOP Team, AOR, Project POC	Document Review / Q&A
5.	Observations/Tours (weather/access permitting)	BTOP Team, AOR, Project POC	Field Review / Tour
Day Tw	0		
6.	Grants Management and Documentation Review	BTOP Team, Project POC/CFO	Document Review / Q&A
7.	Financial Management Review	BTOP Team, Project POC / CFO	Document Review / Q&A
8.	Wrap-Up Meeting	BTOP Team, Key Project Staff	Meeting

